Strategic Planning and Economic Development COW #01

MINUTES

CITY OF IQALUIT

March 30, 2021
lofé

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING #01

MARCH 30, 2021 at 6:00 p.m.
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

PRESENT FROM COUNCIL

Councillor John Fawcett, Chair

Mayor Kenny Bell

Deputy Mayor Janet Brewster

Councillor Romeyn Stevenson

Councillor Joanasie Akumalik

Councillor Sheila Flaherty, via Teleconference
Councillor Kyle Sheppard

Councillor Solomon Awa

ABSENT
Councillor Simon Nattaq

PRESENT FROM ADMINISTRATION

Amy Elgersma, Chief Administrative Officer
Tammy Ernst-Doiron, City Clerk

Geoffrey Byrne, Economic Development Officer

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Motion SPED #21-01

Moved by: Mayor Bell
Seconded by: Councillor Stevenson

Adoption of agenda as presented.

Unanimously Carried

1; MINUTES
None

2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST
None

B DELEGATIONS

a) SednaLink — High Profile Report




Strategic Planning and Economic Development COW #01
March 30, 2021
20f6

Madeleine Redfern, SednaLink, Chief Operating Officer, was in attendance via
teleconference and made a presentation regarding the fibre optic network. The following
are the highlights:

Newfoundland to High Arctic Subsea Fibre Optic Network

Helps bridge the Arctic/Inuit digital divide and lowers internet costs
Unlike satellite, fibre is a dual-purpose infrastructure

Opens up opportunities for the Innovation and Blue Economics
Properly designed subsea fibre optic project can support:

o Ocean protection, environmental monitoring, research, sovereignty,
security, intelligence gathering, marine robotics, mining automation,
offshore green technologies

Phase I and II to provide virtually unlimited broadband connectivity to
Nunatsiavut (five communities and Voisey’s Bay mine) and five Qikiqtani
communities
Phase III will expand the network to connect with:
o Government of Nunavut
Kativik Regional Government
Eastern Arctic Underwater Fibre Optic Network (EAUFON)
Extend northward to Igloolik
West side of Hudson Bay
Kivalliqg communities and mines
Surpass Government of Canada’s 50/10 mbps goal threshold and technologically
future proofs Nunavut for decades
Provides throughput, reliability, speed, security and affordability to customers
A force multiplier which facilitates and boosts socio-economic opportunities and
development for the north and Canada

0O 0O0O0O0

Ms. Redfern requested a letter of support from the City, which would be included with
the other 12 letters of support.

Councillor Fawcett explained that the letter of support would be discussed under New
Business.

4.

DEFERRED BUSINESS AND TABLED ITEMS

None

NEW BUSINESS

a) SednaLink — High Profile Report — Support Letter for Operation

Councillor Fawcett noted that Council previously discussed supporting businesses that
wanted to bring better internet infrastructure to Nunavut.



Strategic Planning and Economic Development COW #01
March 30, 2021
3of6

Mayor Bell commented that Council previously passed a motion to provide a letter of
support to anyone trying to better the internet infrastructure to the territory and a motion
is not required to provide a letter of support to SednaLink.

Councillor Sheppard commented that Council agreed that they would support requests
regarding internet infrastructure, but he felt that requests should be dealt with on a case-
by-case basis to ensure letters of support are in line with Council’s vision.

Motion SPED #21-02

Moved by: Councillor Akumalik
Seconded by: Councillor Sheppard

Committee recommends to Council to provide a letter of support to SednaLink for the
proposal for High Arctic Subsea Fibre Optic Network.

For - Stevenson, Akumalik, Sheppard, Brewster, Awa, Flaherty
Against - Bell
Carried

b) 2020 Business License Report — Verbal

Geoff Byrne, Economic Development Officer, provided an update on the number of
business licenses.

e 2019 - 374 licensed businesses operating in various capacities
e 2020 - 402 licensed businesses operating in various capacities

Mr. Byrne commented that it is encouraging to see continuity and growth in businesses
during the COVID-19 pandemic. He noted that currently in 2021, there are 273 approved
business applications and 70 business applications to be approved.

Councillor Sheppard asked if there were any concerns with the business license process.

Mr. Byrne explained that the largest issue is that staff must cooperate with two other
entities and coordinate what information businesses need to provide.

Mr. Byrne answered a question posed by Councillor Awa, noting that during his tenure,
there have not been any business licenses denied.

Councillor Stevenson asked about businesses without licenses and the ability to identify
those businesses.

Mr. Byrne explained that residents would report businesses without a license, and in turn,
he would contact the business to explain the licensing requirements.




Strategic Planning and Economic Development COW #01
March 30, 2021
40f6

Councillor Stevenson asked if there was a process in place to ensure that any licensed
business that was still in operation renewed their license in subsequent years.

Mr. Byrne explained that every year prior to the deadline, e-mails are sent to licensed
businesses requesting their operational plans for the current year.

Mr. Byrne responded to questions from Councillor Akumalik

e Currently in the business license system, a business can be registered as an Inuit
Owed Business, however, he is not able to provide statistics on this number.

e Mr. Byrne commented that this matter has been discussed and a request is being
forwarded to the site administrator to make provisions so that the information can
be obtained.

e Homebased businesses are required to provide a letter from the landlord
acknowledging that the business is operating in the building. There are entities in
the city that prohibit their employees from using staff units for the purpose of a
business.

Councillor Akumalik expressed concern that translators and carvers who live in Iqaluit
Housing Authority units were required to obtain authorization to do the work.

Amy Elgersma, Chief Administrative Officer, explained that under 4.7 in the by-law,
there are businesses that are exempt from being licensed, which includes an Inuit carver.

Deputy Mayor Brewster asked how the licensing impacts the homeowner if a resident
believes a business is being operated from a rental unit.

Mr. Byrne explained that a tenant renting from a homeowner is required (o provide
approval from the homeowner to operate the business so that a business license can be
approved.

Councillor Fawcett asked what the liability aspect is if a homeowner is unaware of a
tenant operating a business.

Mr. Byrne explained that there are a number of legal requirements relating to operating a
business. If the City becomes aware of a tenant operating a business without a license,
they would be contacted to ensure they obtain a license. The homeowner would be made
aware of the business.

Councillor Flaherty advised that she was unable to hear the majority of the agenda item.

¢) Request for Decision — Incorporating Inuit Language Protection Act
(ILPA) into Business License By-laws

Councillor Sheppard presented a Request for Decision regarding incorporation of the
Inuit Language Protection Act (ILPA). He noted that the Strategic Plan has a specific
item relating to incorporation of Inuktitut to business signage requirements. He



Strategic Planning and Economic Development COW #01
March 30, 2021
50f6

explained that by incorporating the requirement for Inuktitut into the Business License
By-law and signage requirements, it will provide a means of enforcement.

Motion SPED #21-03

Moved by: Councillor Sheppard
Seconded by: Mayor Bell

Committee recommends to Council to direct Administration to research and present
options to Council to incorporate Inuktitut signage requirements of the Inuit Language
Protection Act into City business licensing requirements to meet the goals of the City’s
Strategic Plan.

Unanimously Carried

d) Small Business Promotional Package — Verbal

Councillor Fawcett commented that he had a discussion with staff regarding small
businesses and how to make the process easier and faster for both staff and business
owners. During discussions, it was suggested that a small business promotional package
should be developed to explain the process and requirements to operate a small business.

Geoff Byrne made the following comments:

e Develop a small brochure.

e Update the City’s website business section to include direct links to the various
by-laws that affect a business operation.

e Post links for partnering organizations such as Nunavut Legal Registries and
Workers” Safety and Compensation Commission.

e Develop a how-to video showing how to complete the application.

e Develop a how-to guide on the steps required to open a small business.

Councillor Fawcett noted that he looked on the City’s website for by-laws directly
relating to zoning, which are provided but are not easily accessible. He suggested that
the by-law section on the website be updated so that the most current and updated by-law
is shown first and also to group by-laws in various sections so they can be found easily.

Councillor Sheppard suggested that a plain language document be developed and posted
on the website which outlines the requirements from various by-laws. If there are
situations that requires additional information from the by-law, it can readily be accessed.
He suggested that this information be included in the new website design.

Councillor Sheppard asked if there was a cost to develop this information in preparation
for the new website design.

Councillor Fawcett explained that the purpose for the discussion was to determine what
information should be provided and how the information would be disseminated. Once
this is determined, associated costs would be obtained.




Strategic Planning and Economic Development COW #01
March 30, 2021
60f6

Mayor Bell noted that the Request for Proposal for the new website will be issued within
the next few weeks and will include requirements for various things.

Councillor Fawcett noted that the website is being redesigned and this is the opportune
time to update the business section.

Motion SPED #21-04

Moved by: Councillor Sheppard
Seconded by: Councillor Awa

Committee recommends to Council to direct staff to develop a small business
promotional package.
Unanimously Carried

6. IN CAMERA SESSION

() As per Section 22 (2) (a) CTV Act and By-law 526 Section 67

7. ADJOURNMENT

Motion SPED #21-05

Moved by: Mayor Bell
Seconded by: Councillor Sheppard

Committee adjourns at 6:52 p.m.
Unanimously Carried

!ilJ S — e

7 -

}o&;ﬁ Fawcett
Chair

N3y Tammy Efst-Doiron

City Clerk

Approved by City Council on the 13" day of April 2021.




